

Standards Compliance Round

Local Capability Fund Guidelines 2025-26

Grant available	Up to \$20,000
Percentage of eligible project costs the grant will cover	50%
Funding mechanism	Paid in arrears upon evidence of full payment of approved activities.
Opening date:	10 July 2025
Closing date and time:	3pm Australian Western Standard Time (AWST) on 4 September 2025
	Please avoid submitting your application at the last minute. High volumes of submissions near the deadline can cause delays, and the system may take several minutes to process each submission. If your application is still processing when the deadline passes, it will not be accepted. The SmartyGrants portal strictly closes at the designated time, and no late submissions will be allowed under any circumstances.
Administering entity:	Department of Energy and Economic Diversification (DEED)
Enquiries:	If you have any questions, contact us at lcf@jtsi.wa.gov.au
Type of grant opportunity:	Non-competitive – Applications will be assessed in the order in which they are received. Applicants are strongly encouraged to submit their application early to avoid missing out.

Contents

Standards Compliance Round Guidelines

Introduction	3
About the Program	3
Objectives of this Round	3
Funding Available	3
Applying for a Grant	3
Business Eligibility Criteria	4
Additional Eligibility Requirements	4
Key Dates	5
Eligible & Ineligible Activities	5
Evaluation Process	5
Receiving a Grant (If Successful)	5
Notification of Application Outcome	5
Feedback on Your Application (If Unsuccessful)	6
Managing Your Grant	6
Project Expiry Date and Grant Payments	6
Grant Payment Terms	6
Tax Information	6
Announcement of Grants	6
Reporting Requirements	6
Grant Agreement Variations	6
Confidentiality and Privacy	7
Amendments to Guidelines	7
Contact Us	7
Appendix 1: Eligible Standards	8
Appendix 2: Eligible Expenditure	9
Appendix 3: Ineligible Expenditure	9
Appendix 4: Evaluation Criteria	10
Appendix 5: Glossary	12
Appendix 6: Application Checklist	14
Appendix 7: Example Invoice to DEED	15

Standards Compliance Round Guidelines

Introduction

These guidelines provide essential information about the Standards Compliance Round, which forms part of the Local Capability Fund (LCF) grants program.

This document outlines:

- » The purpose of the grant round.
- » The eligibility and evaluation criteria.
- » How we consider and assess grant applications.
- » How we notify applicants and enter into grant agreements with successful applicants.
- » How we monitor and evaluate grant outcomes.
- » Responsibilities and expectations related to the grant round.

The LCF is administered by the Industry Development Division (IDD) within the Department of Energy and Economic Diversification (DEED, the Department).

Key terms used in these guidelines are defined in the glossary at Appendix 5.

Please read this document carefully before starting your application.

About the Program

The objective of the LCF is to provide small to medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) (refer Appendix 5 for definition) in Western Australia with financial support to enhance their capacity, capability and competitiveness in supplying major projects and markets, both in Australia and overseas.

Objectives of this Round

This round of funding is specifically designed to support eligible Western Australian SMEs with the costs of engaging external expertise to implement and obtain third-party certification of one or more of the eligible national or international standards listed in <u>Appendix 1</u>.

Note: Certification must be implemented in Western Australia.

Funding Available

The maximum grant amount under this round is \$20,000 per applicant. Applicants are required to co-contribute to the approved activities. The LCF will cover 50 per cent of eligible project costs, excluding GST.

To receive the full \$20,000, applicants must demonstrate eligible costs of at least \$40,000 (excluding GST). The Department will not reimburse a grant recipient for GST paid to a third party.

Example:

Total project cost (inc. GST)	\$44,000
Less GST (not covered by grant)	\$4,000
Total eligible cost	\$40,000
Grant amount	\$20,000 (50% of eligible cost)
Applicant contribution (ex GST)	\$20,000
Total applicant out-of-pocket (inc. GST)	\$24,000

Applying for a Grant

Eligible applicants must submit their application online via the <u>SmartyGrants portal</u>. A preview of the application form, including required information, is available on the portal.

Before applying, applicants should:

- » Read and understand these guidelines.
- » Preview the application form.
- » Review the application checklist (Appendix 6).
- » Review the sample Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA) on the SmartyGrants portal.
- » Ensure all eligibility and evaluation criteria are met if you are unsure of your business or activity eligibility or any other requirements, contact the Department for advice.
- » Attach supporting evidence where required.

To apply, you must:

- ✓ Set up an account on the SmartyGrants portal.
- ✓ Complete and submit the application online.
- ✓ Provide all requested information.
- ✓ Address all eligibility and evaluation criteria.
- ✓ Attach only the required documents we will not consider additional attachments.

Applicants are responsible for ensuring their application is complete and accurate before submission.

Business Eligibility Criteria

To be eligible for funding under this round, applicants must:

- Have their principal place of business in Western Australia and remain based there for at least 12 months after submitting the application. This must align with the 'Main business location' listed in ABN Lookup.
- » Have been operating in Western Australia for at least three years at the time of application submission.
- » Primarily supply goods or services to businesses or government, rather than relying on walk-in retail trade. However, consideration will be given to businesses whose proposed activities will enable them to shift or expand into broader supply chains.
- » Have been registered for GST for at least 12 months before applying and intend to remain registered for the next 12 months.
- » Be a solvent business at the time of application and throughout the project duration.
- » Have an Australian Business Number (ABN).
- » Be a for-profit business, or an incorporated not-for-profit Aboriginal Corporation operating as a commercial enterprise.
- » Be an SME with fewer than 200 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees at the time of application.

Additional Eligibility Requirements

- » Only one LCF application per financial year is permitted (identified by ABN) regardless of the round.
- » If multiple applications are received, only the first will be considered, unless it is withdrawn prior to the round closing.

Previous LCF recipients may apply if:

- » They have complied with all requirements of prior FAAs, including submitting all required reports (i.e., no overdue reports).
- » They have received no more than \$200,000 in LCF grant funding over the past five years (excluding funding from the \$10 million COVID-19 LCF Rounds in 2020-21).
- » All previously awarded funding has been claimed.

Key Dates

The following timelines are indicative and subject to change at the Department's discretion. Updates regarding the closing date will be published on the SmartyGrants portal and was.gov.au.

Round Opens	9am (AWST),
	10 July 2025
Round Closes	3pm (AWST),
	4 September 2025 or earlier if funds are exhausted
Evaluation and Notification of Outcomes to Applicants	Within 14 weeks of the round closing.
Unsuccessful Applicants – Request for Feedback	Requests must be submitted within 14 days of the date on the outcome notification letter.
Execution of FAA (Successful Applicants)	Within 30 days of the outcome notification letter.
Completion of activities and Submission of Claim for Payment	No later than 30 June 2026.
Six-Month Report Due	December 2026

Eligible & Ineligible Activities

Refer to Appendix 1 for a list of eligible expenditure and Appendix 2 for a list of ineligible items under this round.

Evaluation Process

Applications will be assessed by an independent evaluation panel comprising Department officers and, where required, external experts. All panel members will be required to declare any conflicts of interest before assessing applications.

The evaluation will consider eligibility, alignment with round objectives and the following criteria:

- » Relevance/ Need
- » Expected Outcomes / Impact
- » Capability and Capacity
- » Value for Money
- » Financial Viability and Risk

A satisfactory response across all criteria is required for an application to be successful. For details on the evaluation criteria, refer to Appendix 4.

A Risk of Failure report will be obtained through Illion or a similar provider for recommended applicants. (Illion is a commercial credit rating agency used to assess financial risk.)

Applicants flagged as High Risk of Failure will be subject to further consideration, with final approval at the Department's discretion.

Receiving a Grant (If Successful)

Notification of Application Outcome

If your application is successful, you will be notified of the outcome in writing. Approval of funding is subject to signing a FAA with the Department. The <u>FAA template</u>, which includes non-negotiable terms and conditions, should be reviewed before applying.

The FAA will be managed through the SmartyGrants portal, including issuing and executing the agreement. "Execute" means both the applicant and the State Government have signed the agreement. Applicants have 30 days from the written offer date to sign the FAA, or the offer may lapse. Extensions may be granted in certain circumstances.

Feedback on Your Application (If Unsuccessful)

Unsuccessful applicants may request feedback via Icf@jtsi.wa.gov.au within two weeks of receiving the outcome notification. Due to the high volume of applications, the Department cannot arrange meetings to discuss feedback.

Managing Your Grant

If your application is successful, these are the requirements and processes for managing your grant.

Project Expiry Date and Grant Payments

All funded activities must be paid for, and claims for payment submitted by the project expiry date specified in the FAA. The default deadline is before the end of the financial year in which funding is awarded. Claims are submitted via the SmartyGrants portal.

Grant Payment Terms

- » The FAA will state the maximum grant amount and the proportion of eligible expenditure covered.
- » The LCF is a reimbursement scheme applicants must pay for activity before claiming approved grant funding.
- » Grants are paid as a lump sum upon completion of all agreed activities. Progress payments will only be considered in exceptional circumstances.
- » Payments require a tax invoice (GST-exclusive) (refer to <u>Appendix 7</u> for an example) and supporting documentation (e.g., supplier invoices and receipts).
- » If a payment claim is not received by the due date, the grant approval will lapse, and the FAA will be terminated.

Tax Information

The Department is registered for GST and has an Australian Business Number (ABN) 90 199 516 864. Grants paid under the LCF are not regarded as payment for a supply to the Department. Therefore, the Department will not increase the grant to include GST, nor reimburse a grant recipient for GST paid to a third party.

Grants are assessable income for taxation purposes. Applicants should seek independent tax advice. The Department does not provide taxation advice.

Announcement of Grants

Successful applicants may be listed on wa.gov.au and announced in Ministerial media releases. This may include:

- » Business name and location
- » Description of the funded activities
- » Grant amount awarded
- » Industry sector.

Reporting Requirements

Grant recipients must submit reports at 6 months and 12 months after the financial year in which the grant was awarded. These must be submitted through <u>SmartyGrants</u>. The Department may also request verbal updates within two years of payment.

Grant Agreement Variations

If unexpected events impact the project, applicants may request a variation to:

» Extend the project completion timeframe

» Modify project activities

Grant funding amounts cannot be increased.

Requests for FAA variations must be submitted in writing at least a month before the agreement end date.

Requests for time extensions will only be considered in exceptional circumstances - where the delay was beyond the applicant's control – and are subject to the availability of program funds beyond the current financial year.

Requests to modify project activities may be approved based on factors such as:

- » The impact on expected project outcomes.
- » Alignment with the program objectives and round guidelines.

Confidentiality and Privacy

Information provided by an applicant as part of, or in connection with, a funding application will be treated as commercial-in-confidence. This information will only be disclosed with the applicant's consent or in accordance with the Announcement of Grants section above.

The Department may disclose any information contained within an application without the applicant's consent:

- » to the relevant Minister and their office
- » to members of the round's evaluation panel
- » to independent technical experts where required
- » to Departmental staff, consultants, advisers and auditors
- » as required by law.

These parties will be required to maintain confidentiality in accordance with the State Government's general confidentiality requirements for employees and contractors.

Amendments to Guidelines

The Department reserves the right to amend these guidelines and related documents during the round if required.

Contact Us

For any questions regarding this program, round, the application form or eligibility for funding, please contact: lcf@jtsi.wa.gov.au. However, please note that due to fairness to other applicants, the Department will not provide specific advice or feedback on the content of your application.

Appendix 1: Eligible Standards

Standards	Description
ISO 9001	Quality management system standard that helps organisations improve efficiency, customer satisfaction, and process control.
ISO 14001	Environmental management system standard aimed at reducing environmental impact and improving sustainability.
ISO 45001	Occupational health and safety standard that helps organisations manage workplace risks and improve employee safety.
ISO 27001	Information security management standard that supports the protection of sensitive data and management of cybersecurity risks.
ISO 50001	Energy management standard that promotes energy efficiency, cost savings, and environmental performance improvements.
AS/NZS 5131	Compliance standard for the structural steel industry, covering fabrication and erection practices to ensure safety and reliability.
ISO 13485:2016	Quality management standard for the medical device industry, focusing on regulatory requirements and risk management.

Appendix 2: Eligible Expenditure

This section provides guidance on the eligibility of expenditure. We may update this guidance from time to time; please ensure you are referring to the most current version on the wa.gov.au website before preparing your application.

The round chairperson makes the final decision on what constitutes eligible expenditure and may provide additional guidance if required.

To be eligible, expenditure must:

- » Be incurred by you within the project period.
- » Meet the eligible expenditure guidelines below.

Assistance under this round will be provided for the costs of engaging external expertise/consultants for the purpose of implementation and certification of the eligible standard(s).

Note: Only costs associated with first-time certification of a standard are eligible under this round.

1) Implementation:

- » Assessment of current systems and practices
- » Review of existing procedures
- » Gap analysis
- » Development of manuals, procedures, and related documentation
- » Staff training related to the implementation and ongoing maintenance of the management system

2) Certification:

- » Registration and certification fees
- » Audit fees for initial certification only (surveillance audits or re-certification costs are not eligible). All certification activities must be completed and paid for within the financial year.
- » Travel, accommodation, and meals for the certification auditor

Note: A condition of this round is that a copy of the certification certificate must be provided to the Department as evidence of completion before any grant funding is paid.

Appendix 3: Ineligible Expenditure

- » Surveillance audits
- » Costs related to ongoing maintenance of the accreditation
- » Works carried out by consultants without the appropriate expertise or qualifications
- » Works conducted by third parties not considered at arm's length from the business by the Department
- » In-house costs, including wages and salaries of staff directly involved in the implementation and maintenance
- » In-kind contributions
- » Retrospective activities (those for which an agreement is already in place or where expenditure was incurred before submitting the application)
- » Activities not implemented within Western Australia

Appendix 4: Evaluation Criteria

You must address all evaluation criteria and sub-criteria in your application. Responses should be detailed and supported with clear evidence, proportionate to the size, complexity, and funding amount requested. The application form includes questions directly linked to these criteria, with character limits indicated for each section.

This guide will help you understand the information required under each section and ensure your responses align with assessment expectations.

Overview of Applicant's Business Operations

Describe the business's core activities, products and services

Briefly describe your business's core activities, products and services, including:

- Your main offerings and how they're delivered to market.
- Whether you supply directly to the relevant sectors.
- Any major projects you've supplied to, your role, and the project scope (if applicable).

Evaluation Criteria

Relevance/Need

Activity alignment with the objective of the round as well as the organisation's business plan and the proposed timing:

- Provide a brief explanation of how the proposed activities align with:
 - o The objectives of this funding round
 - o The business's overall plan or long-term goals.
- Explain why the proposed activities are a short-term priority for the business.
- Identify any prerequisites needed before you can start the proposed activities.
- Explain how these activities fit into your business's long-term strategy.

Note: The panel will consider the relative importance of the grant based on your business's size and investment capacity.

Opportunities and Risks

- Identify key opportunities and risks your business is facing.
- Explain how the proposed activities will address these, with examples (e.g., upskilling staff, meeting pre-qualifications, enhancing capabilities).
- Where relevant, include information about potential customers, existing or potential partnerships, commercial maturity or negotiations underway, timing and scale of the opportunities.

Expected Outcomes and Impact

Your response should cover:

- 1) **Expected Outcomes:** Clearly state the specific, measurable results you expect (e.g., Securing at least five new contracts, gaining access to larger-scale or higher-value projects, reducing operational costs by 30%, or achieving an annual reduction of 50 tonnes of CO₂ in greenhouse gas emission).
- 2) **Path to Outcomes:** Explain how the proposed activities will lead to those outcomes. Provide a logical and detailed link between the grant and the expected business or sector impact.

Quantification and Justification

- Provide specific figures and realistic projections.
- Demonstrate how the grant will contribute to the outcomes.
- Ensure your projections are feasible in relation to your annual turnover.
- Avoid answering 'N/A' to all categories unless truly not applicable.

Note: Funded applicants will need to report against these outcomes six and 12 months after the financial year in which funding is awarded.

Value for Money

Competitive Quotes

• Provide at least two competitive quotes for each activity. If multiple quotes are not available, explain why (e.g., sole supplier).

Supplier Justification

 Explain your choice of supplier or consultant based on value for money, capability, timing, or other relevant benefits - not just cost.

Assessment Considerations:

• The panel will evaluate whether the grant offers value to both the business and the State Government, based on expected outcomes.

Financial Viability and Risk

Disclosure of Risk Factors

- If you respond 'Yes' to any financial risk-related question, clearly explain what occurred, the current status and any resolutions or mitigation strategies.
- The evaluation panel will assess whether providing funding presents a risk. Explain why your business remains financially sustainable despite any identified concerns.

Current Financials

- Provide your most recent financial statements, including a balance sheet and profit and loss statement (full financial year).
- If your current financial statements do not include comparative figures, provide prior year documents.
- If audited financial statements are unavailable, provide independently prepared financial statements.
- Explain any significant year-on-year changes (e.g., in turnover, profit or equity) to demonstrate financial stability.

Tips

- Start Early: Leave enough time to collect quotes and prepare evidence.
- **Double-Check:** Ask someone else to review your application for clarity and completeness.
- **Simplify:** Write clearly. Imagine explaining the project on your website or social media.
- **Be Concise:** Include enough detail to support your case, but don't overwhelm the panel.
- **Highlight Strengths:** Make it easy for the panel to understand your value proposition.
- Check Eligibility: Make sure your business and activities meet all eligibility criteria before applying.
- Submit Required Documents Only: Extra attachments will not be considered.

Appendix 5: Glossary

Term	Definition
Administering entity	The entity that is responsible for the administration the grant processes.
Application form	The document issued by the administering entity that applicants use to apply for funding under the program.
Commencement date	The expected start date for the grant activity.
Department	The Department of Energy and Economic Diversification.
Eligible activities	The activities undertaken by a grantee in relation to a project that are eligible for funding support.
Eligible application	An application for grant funding under the round that the round chairperson has determined is eligible for assessment in accordance with these guidelines.
Eligibility criteria	Refer to the mandatory criteria which must be met to qualify for a grant. Eligibility criteria applies with regards to both the business and the requested activities.
Eligible expenditure	The expenditure incurred by a grantee on a project and which is eligible for funding support as set out in Appendix 2.
Evaluation criteria	The specified criteria against which applications will be judged. These criteria are also used to assess the merits of applications and, in the case of a competitive grant opportunity, to determine application ranking.
Evaluation panel	The body established by the round chairperson to consider and assess eligible applications and make recommendations for funding under the round.
Expiry date	The date by which the grant activity must be paid for and the funds claimed.
Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA)	A legally binding contract that sets out the relationship between the State Government and a grantee for the grant funding, and specifies the details of the grant.
Grant round	Refers to the specific grant round under the Local Capability Fund.
SmartyGrants Portal	The grants information system utilised by the Local Capability Fund, which centralises the administration of all grant rounds under the LCF grant program.
Grantee	The organisation which has been selected to receive a grant.

Term	Definition
Chairperson	A Senior Officer within the Department with responsibility for chairing the round and the Evaluation panel.
Program funds	The funding made available by the State Government for the program.
Project	A project described in an application for grant funding under the program.
Evaluation process	The method used to select potential grantees. This process may involve comparative evaluation of applications or the evaluation of applications against the eligibility criteria and/or the evaluation criteria.
Round chairperson	A Senior Officer within JTSI with responsibility for administering the round.
Small to medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)	Small to medium-sized enterprises: micro to small businesses (1-19 employees) medium businesses (20 to 199 employees).

Appendix 6: Application Checklist

Before submitting your application, please ensure you have completed the following steps and gathered all necessary documents.

Understanding the Grant Requirements

- ✓ Have you read the Guidelines to ensure your business and proposed activities are eligible?
- ✓ Have you reviewed the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for additional clarity?
- ✓ Have you read and understood the FAA that applies to successful applicants?

Application Documents

- ✓ Do you have two quotes for each planned activity to support your proposed grant request?
- ✓ Do you have copies of your business's financial statements that demonstrate two years' worth of activity?

Business Details

- ✓ Do you have your Australian Business Number (ABN) ready?
- ✓ Do you have your business bank details ready?

Final Check

- ✓ Have you completed all required fields in the online application form?
- ✓ Have you attached all supporting documents as per the grant requirements?
- ✓ Have you reviewed your application for accuracy before submission?

Once you have completed this checklist, you are ready to submit your application.

Appendix 7: Example Invoice to DEED (if Successful)

